
COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
Trustees 
Jennifer Cunningham, Chair  
Richard Jay, Vice Chair 
Kitty Jung, Member 
Cortney Young, Member 
Art Sperber, Alternate 
Shaun Carey, Alternate 
Staff Liaison 
Randy Carlton, Chief Finance & 
Administration Officer  

 

 

PRESIDENT/CEO 
  Daren Griffin, A.A.E. 

 
CHIEF LEGAL COUNSEL 

Ian Whitlock 
    

BOARD CLERK 
Lori Kolacek 

 
AGENDA 

Finance & Business Development Committee 
Tuesday, March 12, 2024 | 9:00 AM 

Reno-Tahoe International Airport, Reno, NV 
Administrative Offices, Second Floor  

 
Notice of Public Meeting  
Meetings are open to the public and notice is given pursuant to NRS 241.020. 
 
This meeting will be livestreamed and may be viewed by the public at the following link:  
Watch on Zoom:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88150587204   
Listen by Phone:  Dial 1-669-900-6833 and enter the Webinar ID: 881 5058 7204 
 
Accommodations 
Members of the public who require special accommodations or assistance at the meeting are requested 
to notify the Clerk by email at lkolacek@renoairport.com or by phone at (775) 328-6402. Translated 
materials and translation services are available upon request at no charge.   
   
Public Comment 
Anyone wishing to make public comment may do so in person at the Board meeting, or by emailing 
comments to lkolacek@renoairport.com. Comments received prior to 4:00 p.m. on the day before 
the meeting will be given to the Board for review and included with the minutes of this meeting. To 
make a public comment during the Zoom meeting, please make sure your computer or device has a 
working microphone.  Use the “Chat” feature to submit a request to speak. When the time comes to 
make public comments, you will be invited to speak. Public comment is limited to three (3) minutes 
per person. No action may be taken on a matter raised under general public comment. 
 
Posting 
This agenda has been posted at the following locations: 
1. RTAA Admin Offices, 2001 E. Plumb   
2. www.renoairport.com       3. https://notice.nv.gov/  
 
Supporting Materials 
Supporting documentation for this agenda is available at www.renoairport.com, and will be available 
for review at the Board meeting.  Please contact the Board Clerk at lkolacek@renoairport.com, or 
(775) 328-6402 for further information. 
 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/nrs/nrs-241.html
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88150587204
mailto:lkolacek@renoairport.com
mailto:lkolacek@renoairport.com
https://www.renoairport.com/airport-authority/public-meeting-information/agendas-minutes
https://notice.nv.gov/
https://www.renoairport.com/airport-authority/public-meeting-information/agendas-minutes
mailto:lkolacek@renoairport.com


 
RTAA Finance & Business Development Committee – March 12, 2024   Pg. 2 

1.  INTRODUCTORY ITEMS  
 
1.1  Call to Order  
1.2   Roll Call  
 
2.  PUBLIC COMMENT   
 
3.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 
3.1  February 6, 2024, Finance & Business Development Committee meeting  
 
4.  INFORMATION, DISCUSSION AND/OR POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS  
 
None. 
 
5.   ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE FULL BOARD ON MARCH 14, 2024 
 
5.1 Board Memo No. 03/2024-07: Authorization for the President/CEO to negotiate final terms 

and execute on behalf of the Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority a 50-year Phase II Ground 
Lease for a 100-acre site at the Reno-Stead Airport, as outlined in the Exclusive Master 
Development Agreement, with DP RTA Stead Ph 2, LLC for a minimum contract value of 
$43,128,000 (for possible action)    

 
5.2  Board Memo No. 03/2024-08: Authorization for the President/CEO to execute an 18-mo 

contract extension of the professional services agreement for insurance brokerage services 
with Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, LLC in the amount of $67,500 (for 
possible action)   

 
6.  ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS (provided for reference only)  
 
6.1 Administrative Award of Contracts (Revenues) - February 2024 
6.2  Administrative Award of Contracts (Expenditures) - February 2024 
6.3  Financial Reporting Package - January 2024  
 
7.  MEMBER COMMENTS, QUESTIONS AND REQUESTS  
 
8.   PUBLIC COMMENT    
 
9.  ADJOURNMENT   
 
 



COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
Trustees 
Jennifer Cunningham, Chair  
Richard Jay, Vice Chair 
Kitty Jung, Member 
Cortney Young, Member 
Art Sperber, Alternate 
Shaun Carey, Alternate 
Staff Liaison 
Randy Carlton, Chief Finance &  
  Administration Officer  

 

 

PRESIDENT/CEO 
  Daren Griffin, A.A.E. 

 
CHIEF LEGAL COUNSEL 

Ian Whitlock 
    

BOARD CLERK 
Lori Kolacek 

 
--DRAFT-- 
MINUTES 

Finance & Business Development Committee 
Tuesday, February 6, 2024 | 9:00 AM 

-- Virtual Only --  
 

 
1.  INTRODUCTORY ITEMS  
 
The meeting was called to order at 9:01 a.m.   
 
Roll was taken by the Clerk of the Board.  A quorum was present.   
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Jennifer Cunningham, Richard Jay, Cortney Young, Kitty Jung 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:  None 
 
2.  PUBLIC COMMENT   
 
None.  
 
3.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 
3.1  January 9, 2024, Finance & Business Development Committee meeting  
 
Chair Cunningham asked if there were any corrections to the January 9, 2024, Minutes.  Hearing 
none, the Minutes were approved as presented.   
 
4.  INFORMATION, DISCUSSION AND/OR POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS  
 
None. 
 
5.   ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE FULL BOARD ON FEBRUARY 8, 2024 
 
5.1 Board Memo No. 02/2024-05: Request for authorization to negotiate final terms and execute 

a new 10-year Airport Joint Use Agreement between the Nevada Air National Guard and the 
Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority for a contract value of $783,301 (for possible action)    



 
RTAA Finance & Business Development Committee – February 6, 2024   Pg. 2 

This item was presented by Adam Tennant, Aviation Business Program Manager.  After 
discussion, the Committee took the following action:   
 
Motion: Recommend that this item be presented to the full Board on February 8, 2024, for 
consideration and approval of the proposed motion: “Move to authorize the President/CEO to 
negotiate final terms and execute a new 10-year Airport Joint Use Agreement between the 
Nevada Air National Guard and the Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority for a contract value of 
$783,301.” 
Moved by: Kitty Jung 
Seconded by: Richard Jay  
Vote: Motion passed unanimously  
 
6.  ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS (provided for reference only)  
 
6.1 Administrative Award of Contracts (Revenues) – January 2024 
6.2  Administrative Award of Contracts (Expenditures) – January 2024 
6.3  Financial Reporting Package – December 2023 
6.4  Investment Report Summary for the 2nd Quarter, ended December 31, 2023 
 
There was no discussion on these items.   
 
7.  MEMBER COMMENTS, QUESTIONS AND REQUESTS  
 
 
8.   PUBLIC COMMENT    
 
None.  
 
9.  ADJOURNMENT   
 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:12 a.m.   
 



 
 
 

Board Memorandum 
NO.: 03/2024-07 

 
In Preparation for the Regular Board Meeting on March 14, 2024   

Subject:  Authorization for the President/CEO to negotiate final terms and execute on behalf of 
the Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority a 50-year Phase II Ground Lease for a 100-acre site 
at the Reno-Stead Airport, as outlined in the Exclusive Master Development 
Agreement, with DP RTA Stead Ph 2, LLC for a minimum contract value of 
$43,128,000 

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Board approve the motion presented below. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The purpose of this action is to execute a 50-year Phase II Ground Lease (Lease) with DP RTA 
Stead Ph 2, LLC (Dermody) for the purpose of advancing to Phase II of the planned development 
of a minimum of 1,700 acres at the Reno-Stead Airport (RTS). 
 
In March 2014 the Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority (RTAA) issued a Request for Qualifications 
(RFQ) for a master development partner in an effort to improve utilization of vacant land at RTS 
and attract aeronautical and non-aeronautical companies. The RFQ process was in support of 
Resolution No. 504 setting forth policy adopted by the Board in May 2011. As a matter of policy, 
the RTAA recognized the economic value of development at RTS. Dermody was selected as the 
master developer for the RTS.  
 
On December 8, 2016, the Board authorized the President/CEO to negotiate final terms and 
execute an Exclusive Master Development Agreement (MDA) and a 50-year Phase I Ground Lease 
(P1GL) with DP RTA Stead PH 1, LLC. The effective date for the MDA is December 8, 2016, 
and March 1, 2017, for the P1GL.  
 
Subsequently, between December 2019 and June 2023, several amendments to the MDA were 
brought forward and approved. These included: a first amendment to the MDA for the purpose of 
extending the Construction Completion Date of the Project Site Entrance; a second amendment 
for the purpose of updating term extensions, concept plans, addition of performance milestones, 
development phases and ground lease terms; and a third amendment for the purpose of updating 
the option payment and adding performance milestone requirements.  
 
The MDA and subsequent amendments provide the framework for the phased development of 
available land at RTS.  
 
 



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
DISCUSSION 
With construction on Phase I under way, Dermody has advised that it is prepared to move forward 
with Phase II of its development plan. The proposed Phase II leasehold would be roughly 100-
acres (north of the Phase I site). Proposed site plans (Exhibit B) show a potential of four (4) 
additional buildings compromising 1.6M square feet.  
 
The Third Amendment to the MDA (described above) memorialized certain requirements of 
Dermody in order to advance to development of subsequent phases. Those requirements are as 
follows; 120 days in advance of each subsequent phase deadline:  
 
 

• Complete a survey of record for the next phase; and 
• Initiate due diligence for the next phase; and 
• Provide RTAA with written assurance of ability to obtain financing for next phase. 

 
The RTAA received a letter dated October 26, 2023, from Holland & Hart LLP on behalf of 
Dermody (Exhibit A), indicating their intention to move forward with the Phase II Ground Lease 
and documented completion of the pre-phase commencement date deliverables. 
 
In summary, the key business terms for the Lease are as follows: 

• Approximate Acreage – 100 (as shown in Exhibit C) 
• Condition of Property – “As-Is” 
• Lease Term – 50 years 
• Lease Commencement – March 1, 2024  
• Base Land Rent – $74,875 per month or $898,500 per year monthly (based on appraisal 

dated December 21, 2023). 
• Rent Commencement – upon first Certificate of Occupancy or by March 1, 2026, 

whichever is earlier.  
• Rent Rate Adjustment – Adjusted each two-year anniversary of the Rent Commencement 

date based on factors related to the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers U.S. 
City Average, All Items (CPI-U) and an appraisal every 15 years by a mutually selected 
appraiser with a five percent (5%) cap, but will never be less than the rent in effect at that 
time 

• Security Deposit – $224,625 (equal to three (3) months’ rent) 
 

The Phase I Ground Lease allocated up to thirty-five (35) acre feet of water rights for use in 
connection with the development under the Phase I Ground Lease. RTAA agreed to allocate for 
Dermody’s use any unused portion of the Phase I water rights. The unused portion is approximately 
twenty-one (21) acre feet and the RTAA will retain ownership of the water rights. 
 
The proposed Phase II Ground Lease includes a performance milestone requiring Dermody to 
properly submit and apply for its approval of the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) 
Environmental Review, within six (6) months of the Commencement Date. A requirement of the 
Third Amendment to the MDA is that Dermody must complete improvements for each phase 
within 24 months of receipt of formal environmental process determination from the FAA for that 
phase. 



Page 3 of 3 
 

 
This action is in support of the RTAA’s Financial Stewardship Strategic Priority, as identified in 
the RTAA FY 2024-2028 Strategic Plan. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The ground rent rate established by the appraisal dated December 21, 2023, is $0.206 per square 
foot per year and the total Premise is 100 acres resulting in initial revenue of $74,875 per month 
or $898,500 per year. The proposed Ground Lease would generate approximately $43 million in 
gross revenue over a 50-year term, not including Rent Rate Adjustments. The following is a 
breakdown of the estimated revenue:  

 

 
 
In addition to the fiscal impact stated above, the RTAA has secured a Landlord Participation 
Right. In the event of a sale of a building to any person other than an approved affiliate, the 
RTAA has a right of participation in the building’s net sale proceeds. The participation shall be 
equal to the amount that is 33% of the net sale proceeds in excess of Dermody’s internal rate of 
return (20%). 
 
COMMITTEE COORDINATION 
Finance and Business Development Committee 
 
PROPOSED MOTION 
“Move to authorize the President/CEO to negotiate final terms and execute on behalf of the Reno-
Tahoe Airport Authority a 50-year Phase II Ground Lease for a 100-acre site at the Reno-Stead 
Airport, as outlined in the Exclusive Master Development Agreement, with DP RTA Stead Ph 2, 
LLC for a minimum contract value of $43,128,00.00.”  























 



 
 
 

Board Memorandum 
NO.:  03/2024-08 

 
In Preparation for the Regular Board Meeting on March 14, 2024  
 
Subject:  Authorization for the President/CEO to execute an 18-month contract extension of the 

professional services agreement for insurance brokerage services with Arthur J. 
Gallagher Risk Management Services, LLC in the amount of $67,500 

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Board of Trustees authorize the President/CEO to execute an 18-month 
contract extension of the Professional Services Agreement (PSA) for insurance brokerage services 
with Arthur J. Gallagher (AJG) Risk Management Services, LLC, in the amount of $67,500. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The purpose of this action is to execute an 18-month extension of the PSA with Arthur J. Gallagher 
(AJG) Risk Management Services, LLC, to provide insurance brokerage services to Reno-Tahoe 
Airport Authority (RTAA) through December 31,2024.  
 
The RTAA’s initial five-year agreement with AGJ was approved by the Board of Trustees in 
January 2013 after a comprehensive Request for Proposals (RFP) process. On October 11, 2018, 
the Board approved a five-year extension through June 30,2023, to include marketing and 
placement of insurance coverage for FY 2023-24. AJG is headquartered in Itasca, Illinois.  The 
work is expected to be performed by the staff based in Las Vegas, NV and Aliso Viejo, CA, 
augmented by company subject matter experts in other locations as necessary. 
 
Insurance brokerage services are an integral part of the RTAA’s risk management program. The 
licensed broker of record provides a broad range of services including the following: (1) analysis 
of risk exposure; (2) marketing and selection of adequate insurance coverage; (3) assistance with 
claim administration; and (4) advice and expertise on all property, airport, and aviation risk 
management areas. 
 
The types of insurance purchased by RTAA include the following:  

• Workers Compensation 
• Property  
• Inland Marine (Mobile Equipment) 
• Airport Operations Liability 
• Automobile Liability 
• Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) Professional Liability 
• Law Enforcement Professional Liability 

 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
• Crime 
• Cyber Security 
• Public Officials and Employment Practice Liability 

 
DISCUSSION 
Throughout the collaboration with RTAA, AJG provided excellent customer service, including the 
evaluation of the RTAA’s changing risk profile, review of insurance provisions of various business 
agreements, and extensive marketing and competitive placement of insurance coverage.  
 
Under the proposed amendment, AJG has agreed to the same fee structure as expiring (FY 2023-
24). The PSA includes the marketing and placement of insurance coverage for FY 2024-25, and 
other brokerage services through December 31, 2024.   
 
Staff will issue a Request for Proposal (RFP) in the first quarter of the next fiscal year and bring a 
recommendation to the Board for a new PSA effective January 1, 2025. This allows a reset of 
future brokerage agreements where the incumbent continues to provide support to RTAA for six 
months after the placement of insurance coverage.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The proposed cost of the PSA amendment is $67,500, same as the fees paid for FY 2023-24. The 
brokerage fee consists of $45,000 for liability and property insurance, and $22,500 for workers’ 
compensation.  
 
COMMITTEE COORDINATION 
This item is scheduled to be presented at the March12, 2024, Finance and Business Development 
Committee Meeting. 
 
PROPOSED MOTION 
“It is hereby moved that the Board of Trustees authorizes President/CEO to award the 18-month 
contract extension to the Professional Services Agreement for insurance brokerage services with 
Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services LLC, in the amount of $67,500, and authorizes the 
President/CEO, or his designee to sign.” 



 
 
 
 

Administrative Report 
Date: 03/12/2024 
Subject: Administrative Award of Contracts (Revenues)  

Pursuant To Resolution No. 557 - February 2024 
 
  

BACKGROUND  
At the July 14, 2022 meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority, the 
Board approved Resolution No. 557, recognizing the inherent authority of the President/CEO, 
or authorized representative to award revenue contracts except those that are, in combination, 
more than 5 years in Term, including options, and generate aggregate revenues of $250,000 or 
more.  
 
DISCUSSION  
Resolution No. 557 requires that the President/CEO provide the Board of Trustees with an 
administrative report setting forth a list of revenue contracts and associated options to extend 
approved administratively as a result of the resolution to be given to the Board on a monthly 
basis.  

 
February 2024 

 
 

Date Lessee Property Address Agreement Term Contract Value Portfolio 

2/1/24 Alepholistic – Marisol 
Mariche 

1280 Terminal Way, 
Suites 25 

Month to Month $283.00 Outside 
Properties 

2/1/24 Wild Ride Inc. dba 
Kawasaki of Reno 

2900 Vassar Street, 
Suite 14 

12 Months $8,580.00 Outside 
Properties 

2/1/24 Wild Ride Inc. dba 
Kawasaki of Reno 

2900 Vassar Street, 
Suite 24 

12 Months $7,260.00 Outside 
Properties 

2/1/24 1 New Tenant Mini Warehouse Park to 
Travel 

Month to Month $95.00 Outside 
Properties 



 
 
 
 

Administrative Report 
Date:  March 12, 2024 
Subject: Administrative Award of Contracts (Expenditures) Pursuant to Resolution No. 557– 

February 2024 
  

 
BACKGROUND  
 
At the July 14, 2022, Board of Trustees’ Meeting of the Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority, the Board 
approved Resolution No. 557 authorizing the President/CEO to administratively award contracts for: 

• budgeted professional services when the scope of work is $200,000 or less, and to approve 
amendments where the sum of the total net of amendments per agreement does not to exceed 
$50,000; and 

• budgeted goods, materials, supplies, equipment, technical services, and maintenance 
contracts when the estimated amount to perform the contract, including all change orders, is 
$250,000 or less; and 

• budgeted construction contracts when the estimated amount to perform the work is $500,000 
or less, and approve change orders to construction contracts where the sum of the total net of 
change orders per contract does not exceed $250,000; and 

• budgeted Construction Management and Administration professional service agreements and 
amendments (“Work Order”) where a single Work Order does not exceed $250,000. 

 
All construction contracts exceeding $500,000 must be approved by the Board of Trustees, along 
with a request to establish an Owner’s Contingency. Additionally, if the Board of Trustees originally 
approved the construction contract, any construction change order exceeding the sum of the total of 
the contract and Owner’s Contingency must also be approved by the Board. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Resolution No. 557 requires that the President/CEO provide the Board of Trustees with a monthly 
administrative report listing of all agreements and purchase orders more than $25,000 and approved 
administratively as a result of this Resolution. Further, all change orders and amendments approved 
administratively as a result of this Resolution shall also be included in this administrative report 
regardless of value. 

  



Page 2 
 

 
Agreements and POs in Excess of $25,000 

 

  

Date 
Name of 
Company 

Dollar 
Amount 

Description 
Funding 
Source 

Department / 
Division 

01/16/24 TADERA $236,438.00 A 3-Year Technical Services Contract (ending 
01/15/27) was issued for SaaS subscription of 
accounts receivables software. 

FY24 O&M Technology & 
Information 
Systems 

02/08/24 L3 Harris 
Technologies 

$95,721.74 A PO was issued for communication equipment, 
including radios. 

FY24 O&M ARFF 

02/29/24 Dell Marketing 
L.P. 

$61,975.00 A PO was issued for desktop computer 
replenishment. 

FY24 Fixed 
Assets 

Technology & 
Information 
Systems 



Page 3 
 

 
Change Orders and Amendments 

Date 
Name of 
Company 

Dollar 
Amount 

Description 
Funding 
Source 

Department / 
Division 

10/11/23 Western Single 
Ply Nevada, Inc. 

$1,798.21 CO#1 for the Hangar #6 Small Roof Replacement 
construction contract was for additional scope of 
work. Total Contract, including this CO, equals 
$62,014.91. [See attached] *clerical error on 
CO#1 will be corrected on CO#2 noted below 

FY24 Special 
Fund (Stead) 

Engineering & 
Construction 

01/15/24 Q&D 
Construction 

$75,831.37 Owner’s Contingency CO#4 for the Loop Road 
construction contract was for additional scope of 
work + 2 additional contract days. Total Contract, 
including this CO, equals $11,997,393.63. [See 
attached] 

PFC and 
Federal Grant 

Engineering & 
Construction 

01/18/24 KONE, Inc. ($18,000.00) CO#1 for the arrival/departure escalators 
construction contract was a no cost CO to extend 
days. CO#2 was a deductive CO for assessing LDs 
because the contractor did not complete the 
project within the extended timeframe. Total 
contract, including these 2 COs, equals = 
$1,944,000.00. [See attached] 

FY22 CIP Engineering & 
Construction 

01/29/24 Q&D 
Construction 

$86,263.03 Owner’s Contingency CO#5 for the Loop Road 
construction contract was for additional scope of 
work + 2 additional contract days. Total Contract, 
including this CO, equals $12,086,656.66. [See 
attached] 

PFC and 
Federal Grant 

Engineering & 
Construction 

01/30/24 ACC Consulting $27,250.00 Amendment #2 was issued for a PSA for DBE 
consulting services. Total Contract, including this 
amendment, equals $37,350.00. 

FY24 O&M Engineering & 
Construction 

02/07/24 Western Single 
Ply Nevada, Inc. 

($90.00) CO#2 for the Hangar #6 Small Roof Replacement 
construction contract was to correct clerical 
error reported on CO#1. Total Contract, including 
this CO, equals $61,924.91. [See attached] 

FY24 Special 
Fund (Stead) 

Engineering & 
Construction 

02/16/24 Q&D 
Construction 

$32,782.90 Owner’s Contingency CO#6 for the Loop Road 
construction contract was for additional scope of 
work. Total Contract, including this CO, equals 
$12,116,439.56. [See attached] 

PFC and 
Federal Grant 

Engineering & 
Construction 

 
 

Key to abbreviations: 
AIP = Airport Improvement Project 
CIP = Capital Improvement Program 
CFC = Customer Facility Charge 

 
CO = Change Order 
NTE = Not to Exceed 
PFC = Passenger Facility Charge 

 
PO = Purchase Order 
PSA = Professional Service Agreement 



lkolacek
Sticky Note
Accepted set by lkolacek

lkolacek
Sticky Note
Completed set by lkolacek































BID ITEM NO.  DEMOLITION NOTES QTY  UNIT  UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE

6 REMOVE EXISTING SIDEWALK 259.59 SY 17.00$           4,413.03$               

5 REMOVE EXISTING CURB OR CURB & GUTTER  13 LF 18.00$           234.00$                  

8 REMOVE EXISTING LANDSCAPE  9 SY 106.00$         954.00$                  

26 CONSTRUCT PCC SIDEWALK PER DETAIL 1 ON SHEET D1 270.59 SY 160.00$         43,294.40$             

38 INSTALL 6 INCH DECORATIVE ROCK (MATCH EXISTING) 170 SY 52.00$           8,840.00$               

25 CONSTRUCT POST CURB PER DETAIL 6 ON SHEET D7 13 LF 52.00$           676.00$                  

27 CONSTRUCT RAMP PER COR DETAIL R‐106E 12 SY 224.00$         2,688.00$               

CCO No. 05‐1 REINSTALL EXISTING CHAIN LINK FENCE AND GATE  1 LS 13,728.00$   13,728.00$             

CCO No. 05‐2 CUT FORTIFICATION BOLLARDS 1 LS 11,435.60$   11,435.60$             

TOTAL 86,263.03$             

SCHEDULE OF VALUES REVISION



CHANGE ORDER REQUEST 
CCO No.  013 

Submitted By: Approved By: 

1/2/2024 
Braden Riley Date Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority Date 

Project No.:   16571 – RTIA Terminal Loop Road Project Date:  1/2/2024 

To: Jon Lau From: Braden Riley 
Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority Q&D Construction LLC 
2001 E Plumb Lane PO Box 10865 
Reno, NV 89502 Reno, NV  89510 

Phone: 775-328-6462 Phone: 775-786-2677 
Fax: 

 
Fax: 775-786-5136 

Email: jlau@renoairport.com Email: briley@qdconstruction.com 

cc: Marc Leone (Q&D) 

Below is the detail for our proposal to complete the following changes in contract work: 
- Change Order Request: CCO#013 – Fencing at South Sidewalk Repairs

- Proposed Scope of Work:  Change order is for labor, equipment, and materials to remove
existing dog run and chain link fence, and reinstall with existing fencing material to
accommodate the sidewalk improvements.

CCO Item Sub-Totals Quantity Units Unit Price Amount 

Fencing at South Sidewalk Repairs 78 LF $176.00 $13,728.00 

CCO Item Totals Change (in Days) Amount 

CCO#013 – Fencing at South Sidewalk Repairs 2 $13,728.00 

 



Quality through Experience 

     

 

 

       

December 9, 2023 

 

Q and D Construction 

Braden Riley 

 

Subject: RTAA Reinstallation of Fencing at Dog Relief Area              

 

Tholl Fence Company is pleased to confirm our quotation on subject project as follows: 

• Reinstall the 55 l.f. of existing 6’ tall ornamental iron fencing without gates complete and 

in place.  We are assuming all materials are in acceptable conditions and no replacement of 

materials is specified or required.   

• Reinstall the 23 l.f. of existing 6’ tall galvanized chain link fencing including (1) 

pedestrian gate complete and in place.  We are assuming all materials are in acceptable 

conditions and no replacement of materials is specified or required.   

 

INCLUSIONS 

• Prevailing Wage Rates 

• A few miscellaneous parts such as ties, hog rings and brackets 

 

EXCLUSIONS 

• Removal of existing fencing, storage or replacement of materials.    

• Any specialized hardware such as self-closing hinges, panic devices, electric strikes, card 

readers etc. 

• Permits, fees and bonds   

 

        Our Quotation LUMP SUM INSTALLED for all items above ………. $ 8,396.00 

 

 
Steve Appelbaum 

Tholl Fence, Inc. 

800 Glendale Avenue 

PO Box 855 

Sparks, NV  89432 

775.358.8680  

775.358.7197 fax 

stevea@thollfence.com 

ESTABLISHED 
1912 

NEVADA LICENSE 5493 A 
CALIFORNIA LICENSE 199672 

800 Glendale Avenue      ●      P.O. Box 855      ●      Sparks, Nevada  89432      ●      Telephone 775.358.8680      ●      Fax 775.358.7197 



1

2

3

3

4

4

5

1

6

4409.6

LIMITS OF
GRADING

4410.41
FG

4410.66
BW

±4410.0
MATCH EX

±4410.53
MATCH EX

±4410.64
MATCH EX

4410.42
FG

±4410.2
MATCH EX

±4410.65
MATCH EX

±4410.54
MATCH EX

±4410.67
MATCH EX

4410.42
TBC

4410.11
TBC

4410.26
FG

±4409.8
MATCH EX

±4410.7
MATCH EX

±4410.55
MATCH EX

±4410.41
MATCH EX

±4410.33
MATCH EX

4410.45
TBC

4410.44
BW

4410.66
BW

4410.23
TBC

4410.57
FG

±4410.69
MATCH EX

±4410.73
MATCH EX

±4410.25
MATCH EX

±4410.69
MATCH EX

±4410.62
MATCH EX

4410.39
BW

4410.50

4410.40

44
10

.4
0

44
10

.6
0

4410.40

Date:

Drawing Number

RTAA Project No.

Sheet:         of

PL
EA

SE
 R

EC
YC

LE

R
EN

O
-T

AH
O

E 
AI

R
PO

R
T 

AU
TH

O
R

IT
Y

KH
A 

PR
O

JE
C

T
09

25
28

01
8

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y:
 C

N
H

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

   
   

  H
S

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y:
  C

N
H

Avoid cutting underground
utility lines. It's costly.

OR

Call NOVEMBER 15, 2023

1

R20008B

1

N
O

R
TH

G
EN

ER
AL

 P
LA

N

DEMOLITION NOTES PROTECT IN PLACE NOTESCONSTRUCTION NOTES
N

O
R

TH

N
O

R
TH

GRADING PLANCONSTRUCTION PLANDEMOLITION PLAN

QUANTITIES QUANTITIES



 CHANGE ORDER REQUEST 
CCO No.          014 

 
 

 

Submitted By:    Approved By:  
  

1/16/2024 
    

Braden Riley Date   Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority  Date 
     

 

 

Project No.:   16571 – RTIA Terminal Loop Road Project Date:  1/16/2024 
 

 
To: 

 
Jon Lau 

 
From: 

 
Braden Riley 

 Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority  Q&D Construction LLC 
 2001 E Plumb Lane  PO Box 10865 
 Reno, NV 89502  Reno, NV  89510 
 

Phone: 
 
775-328-6462 

 
Phone: 

 
775-786-2677 

Fax: 
 

Fax: 775-786-5136 
Email: jlau@renoairport.com Email: briley@qdconstruction.com 

cc: Marc Leone (Q&D) 
 

Below is the detail for our proposal to complete the following changes in contract work: 
- Change Order Request: CCO#014 – T&M Cutting of Bollards to 37” Height 

- Proposed Scope of Work:  Change order is for labor, equipment, and materials to cut the 
fortification bollards to the proposed height per Addendum 5.  
 
 

 

 

CCO Item Sub-Totals Quantity Units Unit Price Amount 

T&M Cutting of Bollards to 37” Height 1 LSU $11,435.60 $11,435.60 

 

 

CCO Item Totals Change (in Days) Amount 

CCO#014 – T&M Cutting of Bollards to 37” Height 0 $11,435.60 
 



lkolacek
Sticky Note
Completed set by lkolacek















SCHED. 60 A500, GRADE B
STEEL PIPE

0.594"

10.75"

1" A-36 STEEL INSERT
(ORIENTED IN DIRECTION OF TRAFFIC)

DIRECTION
OF IMPACT36"

12"

1.5'

SIDE ELEVATION VIEW

FOR REFERENCE ONLY

CONTRACTOR TO SUPPLY MANUFACTURER
SHOP DRAWINGS PRIOR TO START OF CONSTRUCTION FOR APPROVAL BY OWNER

3" 3"

40 38" From
Center of Bollard
to Edge of Array

40 38" From
Center of Bollard
to Edge of Array

35" CLEAR 35" CLEAR11' (TYP) SEE PLANS 11' (TYP) SEE PLANS

12' (TYP) SEE PLANS 12' (TYP) SEE PLANS

18" Typ.

20 34" Typ.

25" Typ.

12 12"

36"

3"
3"

12"

(Ø10 34")

66"

       3" 3"
3"

18" 7 14"

12 78 "

6"

6"

6"

12"

7"

CONTACT INFORMATION:

- GIBRALTAR / PERIMETER SECURITY
JEFFREY HALAUT
BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT SECURITY
O:830.798.5444
C:540.287.6111
JHALAUT@GIBRALTARPS.COM
WWW.GIBRALTARPERIMETERSECURITY.COM

41" 41"

Date:

Drawing Number

RTAA Project No.

Sheet:         of

PL
EA

SE
 R

EC
YC

LE

R
EN

O
-T

AH
O

E 
AI

R
PO

R
T 

AU
TH

O
R

IT
Y

KH
A 

PR
O

JE
C

T
09

25
28

01
8

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y:
 C

N
H

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

   
   

  I
M

L

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y:
  C

N
H

DECEMBER 16, 2022

66

R20008B

C
IV

IL
 D

ET
AI

LS
 (4

 O
F 

7)

D4
29

1
D4

FORTIFIED BOLLARDS N.T.S.

NOTES:

1. THE BOLLARD DIMENSIONS AND LAYOUT HAVE BEEN REVISED PER
REQUEST OF THE RTAA, SUBSEQUENTLY, ALL SAFETY/ SECURITY
QUALIFICATIONS AND RATINGS ARE NO LONGER VALID.







 
CHANGE ORDER REQUEST 

CCO No.          007 
 

 

 

Submitted By:    Approved By:  
  

1/16/2024 
    

Braden Riley Date   Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority  Date 
     

 

 

Project No.:   16571 – RTIA Terminal Loop Road Project Date:  1/16/2024 

 

 
To: 

 
Jon Lau 

 
From: 

 
Braden Riley 

 Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority  Q&D Construction LLC 
 2001 E Plumb Lane  PO Box 10865 
 Reno, NV 89502  Reno, NV  89510 
 

Phone: 
 
775-328-6462 

 
Phone: 

 
775-786-2677 

Fax: 
 

Fax: 775-786-5136 
Email: jlau@renoairport.com Email: briley@qdconstruction.com 

cc: Marc Leone (Q&D) 

 

Below is the detail for our proposal to complete the following changes in contract work: 
- Change Order Request: CCO#007 – Grading Quantities 

- Proposed Scope of Work:  Change order is for labor, equipment and materials for trucking 
of additional aggregate base quantities per RFI 007 based on the attached Cut/Fill Map for 
Areas 1 and 2.  

- Trucking costs are 98 hours to haul additional aggregate base material. 
- Material costs are based off of 307.3 CY of aggregate base material required for the fill 

sections in Areas 1 and 2. 
 

 
 

PCO Item Sub-Totals Quantity Units Unit Price Amount 

Grading Quantities 307.3 CY $73.00 $23,432.90 

 
 

CCO Item Totals Change (in Days) Amount 

CCO#007 – Grading Quantities  $23,432.90 

 

mailto:jlau@renoairport.com
mailto:briley@qdconstruction.com


REQUEST FOR INFORMATION
RFI # : 0007

1050 S. 21st St.
SPARKS, NV  89431
(775) 786-2677
FAX #:  (775) 786-5136

TO: DATE:

COMPANY: Q&D Job #:

FROM:
Project Engineer
Q&D Construction LLC

RE:

DESCRIPTION OF REQUEST:

REPLY:

SIGNATURE:

Braden Riley

Grading Quantities

Where do we get paid for quantity of cut/fill material that exceeds the depth of the 

proposed 10" structural section as indicated on Detail 4, Sheet C7? (6" Asphalt on 4" 

Aggregate Base)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Christian Heinbaugh 8/7/2023

Kimley-Horn 16571

Demolition is covered in the project specifications and bid items and no additional
payment will be made for demolition work.

Please provide a cost proposal to provide additional aggregate base material required to
prepare the required structural sections utilizing the earthwork quantities Q&D identified
and provided on 9/18/2023.  

Christian Heinbaugh, Kimley-Horn
2023.09.28
 



�����������	�
��� ���������������

����	����	�������������������� ����!�"���#�$��#%�#�$������&''���(�)$*��������+�,�-)��$� ���

./012345678259:4:

;<=>? @?ABCDEFGHCIEJKHLMNAOPQROOSCEMFTCUJJI
EJTDCEHLJ;NMEVLMFJ;AWJDHUAOPQROOS
EMFTCUJJICEJTDCEHLJ;NMEVLMFJ;XYZ>

N[\>? ]̂CW_
W à[b[>a? cdPedPOPQCfO?fg?OPCTWChVML?R̂i
M[=>C\̀j>?I<Z[b[ZCNk<ja<laCM[=>
E>b>l>jZ>
jm=n>l?
D>oZl[pk[̀j?
L̀==>jkCf?
L̀==>jkCP?
L̀==>jkCQ?

q00/r7s:425tuv42w

;<=>? NLNSOOCÙZ<x[\<k[̀j
B̀j>? NLNSOOCE>Z̀la

D<km=?
y@NceCHzm[Y<x>jk
D<km=

@x̀n<xCl>b>l>jZ>
a<km=?

y@NCfSce

@x̀n<xCl>b>l>jZ>
>p̀Z{?
@>̀[a?
G>lk[Z<xCa<km=?
L<x[nl<k>aCo[k>?

|:/4}~0/�5�08�w25�2�0/4

�s38:vv7�72r5v�/�:32530w�:/2r5405�s38:vv7�72r5v�/�:32

t�/�:32v

|�5�����5� Lx<oo[b[Z<k[̀j?CVjZx<oo[b[>a

t� Lx<oo[b[Z<k[̀j?CVjZx<oo[b[>a

�:s�5�08�w2v5�:v2r50s5t�/�:325�20w24/u5�80s2

q�45w:42/7:8 ����5ur�

67885w:42/7:8 �����5ur�

92�7374 �����5ur�

�:s�5�/2:v5�:v2r50s5t�/�:325�20w24/u5�80s2

q�45:/2: ��������5�4�

67885:/2: ��������5�4�

�2/05�08�w25:/2: ���5�4�

�04:8 ��������5�4�

92�4}5v�ww:/u

�:�7w�w5r2�4}50�53�45w:42/7:8 �����5�4

�:�7w�w5r2�4}50�5�7885w:42/7:8 �����5�4

;̀k>?C�LmkCW<k>l[<x�C[oCa>b[j>aC<oC=<k>l[<xC�{>l>C�N@�C[oCx̀�>lCk{<jC�H@CROX̂]Cf�XC� [xxCW<k>l[<x�C[oCa>b[j>aC<oCk{>
Ỳxm=>C̀bC=<k>l[<xC�{>l>C�N@�C[oC{[¡{>lCk{<jC�H@CROX̂]Cf�X

lkolacek
Sticky Note
Completed set by lkolacek



�����������	�
��� ���������������

����	����	�������������������� ����!�"���#�$��#%�#�$������&''���(�)$*��������+�,�-)��$� ���

./0123451367/8138/9:;1<36=13>69>:9601?3</919@3A=/;30513B1/;10=C1<3/A30513<191>01?3<:=A6>1<D3./3;601=C69
E=/E1=0C1<36=136EE9C1?30/3051367/813F:;71=<D

G60123HIJKIJLJM3NL2MO2NJ3PQ

R=/S1>023T2UV3GWXYZ
RW[\Z]4̂ULJM_LL̀3W4XP3a[[R

W[PG
WZ][.̂ 4Wb]4X[.UQ[GZaULJM_

LL̀3W4XP3a[[R3W[PG
WZ][.̂ 4Wb]4X[.D8>1

4=C;7913c:<CF1<<3]1F01=



�����������	�
��� ���������������

����	����	�������������������� ����!�"���#�$��#%�#�$������&''���(�)$*�����+,-"����)��$� ���

./012345678259:4:

;<=>? @?ABCDEFGHCIEJKHLMNAOPQROOSCEMFTCUJJI
EJTDCEHLJ;NMEVLMFJ;AWJDHUAOPQROOS
EMFTCUJJICEJTDCEHLJ;NMEVLMFJ;XYZ>

N[\>? ]̂CW_
W à[b[>a? cdPedPOPQCfO?fg?OPCTWChVML?R̂i
M[=>C\̀j>?I<Z[b[ZCNk<ja<laCM[=>
E>b>l>jZ>
jm=n>l?
D>oZl[pk[̀j?
L̀==>jkCf?
L̀==>jkCP?
L̀==>jkCQ?

q00/r7s:425tuv42w

;<=>? NLNSOOCÙZ<x[\<k[̀j
B̀j>? NLNSOOCE>Z̀la

D<km=?
y@NceCHzm[Y<x>jk
D<km=

@x̀n<xCl>b>l>jZ>
a<km=?

y@NCfSce

@x̀n<xCl>b>l>jZ>
>p̀Z{?
@>̀[a?
G>lk[Z<xCa<km=?
L<x[nl<k>aCo[k>?

|:/4}~0/�5�08�w25�2�0/4

�s38:vv7�72r5v�/�:32530w�:/2r5405�s38:vv7�72r5v�/�:32

t�/�:32v

|�5�����5� Lx<oo[b[Z<k[̀j?CVjZx<oo[b[>a

t� Lx<oo[b[Z<k[̀j?CVjZx<oo[b[>a

�:s�5�08�w2v5�:v2r50s5t�/�:325�20w24/u5�80s2

q�45w:42/7:8 ����5ur�

67885w:42/7:8 ����5ur�

|�32vv ����5ur�

�:s�5�/2:v5�:v2r50s5t�/�:325�20w24/u5�80s2

q�45:/2: �������5�4�

67885:/2: �������5�4�

�2/05�08�w25:/2: ���5�4�

�04:8 ��������5�4�

92�4}5v�ww:/u

�:�7w�w5r2�4}50�53�45w:42/7:8 �����5�4

�:�7w�w5r2�4}50�5�7885w:42/7:8 �����5�4

;̀k>?C�LmkCW<k>l[<x�C[oCa>b[j>aC<oC=<k>l[<xC�{>l>C�N@ C[oCx̀�>lCk{<jC�H@CROX̂]CP XC�¡[xxCW<k>l[<x�C[oCa>b[j>aC<oCk{>
Ỳxm=>C̀bC=<k>l[<xC�{>l>C�N@ C[oC{[¢{>lCk{<jC�H@CROX̂]CP X

lkolacek
Sticky Note
Completed set by lkolacek



�����������	�
��� ���������������

����	����	�������������������� ����!�"���#�$��#%�#�$������&''���(�)$*�����+,-"����)��$� ���

./0123451367/8138/9:;1<36=13>69>:9601?3</919@3A=/;30513B1/;10=C1<3/A30513<191>01?3<:=A6>1<D3./3;601=C69
E=/E1=0C1<36=136EE9C1?30/3051367/813F:;71=<D

G60123HIJKIJLJM3NL2MO2MM3PQ

R=/S1>023T2UV3GWXYZ
RW[\Z]4̂ULJM_LLO3W4XP3̀[[R

W[PG
WZ][.̂ 4Wa]4X[.UQ[GZ̀ULJM_

LLO3W4XP3̀[[R3W[PG
WZ][.̂ 4Wa]4X[.D8>1

4=C;7913b:<CF1<<3]1F01=



�����������	���
� ���������������

����	����	���������������
����� �!��"�#��"$�"�#�����%&&���'�(#)������*����+�(��#� ���

,-./0123456037828

9:;<= >=?@ABCDEFAGCHIFJKL?MNOPMMQACKDRASHHG
CHRBACFJH9LKCTJKDH9?UHBFS?MNOPMMQ
CKDRASHHGACHRBACFJH9LKCTJKDH9VWX<

LYZ<= [\AU]
U _̂ỲY<_= abNcbNMNOAdM=de=MNARUAfTKJ=P\g
KY;<AẐh<=G:XỲYXALi:h_:j_AKY;<
C<̀<j<hX<
hk;l<j=
B<mXjYniŶh=
Ĵ;;<hiAd=
Ĵ;;<hiAN=
Ĵ;;<hiAO=

o..-p5q8203rst20u

9:;<= LJLQMMAŜX:vYZ:iŶh
@̂h<= LJLQMMAC<X̂j_

B:ik;=
w>LacAFxkYW:v<hi
B:ik;

>v̂l:vAj<̀<j<hX<
_:ik;=

w>LAdQac

>v̂l:vAj<̀<j<hX<
<n̂Xy=
><̂Y_=
E<jiYX:vA_:ik;=
J:vYlj:i<_AmYi<=

z8-2{|.-}3~.6�u03�0�.-2

�q168tt5�50p3t�-�81031.u�8-0p32.3�q168tt5�50p3t�-�810

r�-�810t

z�3�����3� Jv:mmỲYX:iŶh=AThXv:mmỲY<_

r� Jv:mmỲYX:iŶh=AThXv:mmỲY<_

�8q}3~.6�u0t3�8t0p3.q3r�-�8103�0.u02-s3�6.q0

o�23u820-586 �����3sp�

45663u820-586 ���3sp�

z�10tt ����3sp�

�8q}3�-08t3�8t0p3.q3r�-�8103�0.u02-s3�6.q0

o�238-08 �������3�2�

456638-08 �����3�2�

�0-.3�.6�u038-08 ���3�2�

�.286 �������3�2�

70�2{3t�uu8-s

�8�5u�u3p0�2{3.�31�23u820-586 �����3�2

�8�5u�u3p0�2{3.�3�5663u820-586 �����3�2

9̂i<=A�JkiAU:i<jY:v�AYmA_<̀Yh<_A:mA;:i<jY:vA�y<j<A�L>�AYmAv̂�<jAiy:hA�F>APMV\[AO�VA��YvvAU:i<jY:v�AYmA_<̀Yh<_A:mAiy<
Ŵvk;<ẦA;:i<jY:vA�y<j<A�L>�AYmAyY�y<jAiy:hA�F>APMV\[AO�V

lkolacek
Sticky Note
Completed set by lkolacek



�����������	���
� ���������������

����	����	���������������
����� �!��"�#��"$�"�#�����%&&���'�(#)������*����+�(��#� ���

,-./0123/145-6/16-789/:14;/1<47<874./=1:-7/7>1?;-91.3/1@/-9/.;A/:1-?1.3/1:/7/<./=1:8;?4</:B1,-194./;A47
C;-C/;.A/:14;/14CC7A/=1.-1.3/145-6/1D895/;:B

E4./01FGHIGHJHK1LJ0IJ0KJ1MN

O;-P/<.01Q0RS1ETUVW
OTXYWZ2[RJHK\JJ]1T2UM1̂XXO

TXME
TWZX,[2T_Z2UX,RNXEŴRJHK\

JJ]1T2UM1̂XXO1TXME
TWZX,[2T_Z2UX,B6</

2;A957/1̀8:AD/::1Z/D./;



�����������	���
� ���������������

����	����	���������������
����� �!��"�#��"$�"�#�����%&&���'�(#)���������*(��#� ���

+,-./012345/26717

89:;< =<>?@ABCDE@FBGHEIJK>LMNOLLP@BJCQ@RGGF
BGQA@BEIG8KJBSIJCG8>TGAER>LMNOLLP
BJCQ@RGGF@BGQA@BEIG8KJBSIJCG8UVW;

KXY;< Z[@T\
T]̂X_X;̂< àMbaMLMN@cL<cd<LM@QT@eSJI<O[f
JX:;@Y]g;<F9WX_XW@Kh9ĝ9î@JX:;
B;_;i;gW;
gj:k;i<
A;lWiXmhX]g<
I]::;gh@c<
I]::;gh@M<
I]::;gh@N<

n--,o4p71/2qrs1/t

89:;< KIKPLL@R]W9uXY9hX]g
?]g;< KIKPLL@B;W]î

A9hj:<
v=K̀b@EwjXV9u;gh
A9hj:

=u]k9u@i;_;i;gW;
9̂hj:<

v=K@cP̀b

=u]k9u@i;_;i;gW;
;m]Wx<
=;]X̂<
D;ihXW9u@̂9hj:<
I9uXki9h;̂@lXh;<

y7,1z{-,|2}-5~t/2�/�-,1

�p057ss4�4/o2s~,�70/20-t�7,/o21-2�p057ss4�4/o2s~,�70/

q~,�70/s

y�2�����2� Iu9llX_XW9hX]g<@SgWu9llX_X;̂

q� Iu9llX_XW9hX]g<@SgWu9llX_X;̂

�7p|2}-5~t/s2�7s/o2-p2q~,�70/2�/-t/1,r2�5-p/

n~12t71/,475 �����2ro�

34552t71/,475 ����2ro�

y�0/ss �����2ro�

�7p|2�,/7s2�7s/o2-p2q~,�70/2�/-t/1,r2�5-p/

n~127,/7 ��������2�1�

345527,/7 �������2�1�

�/,-2�-5~t/27,/7 ���2�1�

�-175 ��������2�1�

6/�1z2s~tt7,r

�7�4t~t2o/�1z2-�20~12t71/,475 �����2�1

�7�4t~t2o/�1z2-�2�4552t71/,475 �����2�1

8]h;<@�Ijh@T9h;iX9u�@Xl@̂;_Xg;̂@9l@:9h;iX9u@�x;i;@�K=�@Xl@u]�;i@hx9g@�E=@OLU[Z@b�U@��Xuu@T9h;iX9u�@Xl@̂;_Xg;̂@9l@hx;
V]uj:;@]_@:9h;iX9u@�x;i;@�K=�@Xl@xX�x;i@hx9g@�E=@OLU[Z@b�U

lkolacek
Sticky Note
Completed set by lkolacek



�����������	���
� ���������������

����	����	���������������
����� �!��"�#��"$�"�#�����%&&���'�(#)���������*(��#� ���

+,-./012.034,5.05,678.903:.0;36;763-.<09,6.6=0>:,80-2.0?.,8.-:@.90,>0-2.09.6.;-.<097:>3;.9A0+,083-.:@36
B:,B.:-@.903:.03BB6@.<0-,0-2.034,5.0C784.:9A

D3-./0EFGHFGIGJ0KI/HK/GL0MN

O:,P.;-/0Q/RS0DTUVW
OTXYWZ1[RIGJ\II]0T1UM0̂XXO

TXMD
TWZX+[1T_Z1UX+RNXDŴRIGJ\

II]0T1UM0̂XXO0TXMD
TWZX+[1T_Z1UX+A5;.

1:@846.0̀79@C.990Z.C-.:



�����������	���
� ���������������

����	����	���������������
����� �!��"�#��"$�"�#�����%&&���'�(#)�����!��!���!(��#� ���

*+,-./01234.15606

789:; <;=>?@ABCD?EAFGDHIJ=KLMNKKO?AIBP?QFFE
AFP@?ADHF7JIARHIBF7=SF@DQ=KLMNKKO
AIBP?QFFE?AFP@?ADHF7JIARHIBF7TUV:

JWX:; YZ?S[
S\]ŴW:]; _̀LàLKLM?bK;bc;KL?PS?dRIH;NZe
IW9:?X\f:;E8VŴWV?Jg8f]8h]?IW9:
A:̂:h:fV:
fi9j:h;
@:kVhWlgW\f;
H\99:fg?b;
H\99:fg?L;
H\99:fg?M;

m,,+n3o60.1pqr0.s

789:; JHJOKK?Q\V8tWX8gW\f
>\f:; JHJOKK?A:V\h]

@8gi9;
u<J_a?DviWU8t:fg
@8gi9

<t\j8t?h:̂:h:fV:
]8gi9;

u<J?bO_a

<t\j8t?h:̂:h:fV:
:l\Vw;
<:\W];
C:hgWV8t?]8gi9;
H8tWjh8g:]?kWg:;

x6+0yz,+{1|,4}s.1~.�,+0

�o/46rr3�3.n1r}+�6/.1/,s�6+.n10,1�o/46rr3�3.n1r}+�6/.

p}+�6/.r

x�1�����1� Ht8kkŴWV8gW\f;?RfVt8kkŴW:]

p� Ht8kkŴWV8gW\f;?RfVt8kkŴW:]

�6o{1|,4}s.r1�6r.n1,o1p}+�6/.1�.,s.0+q1�4,o.

m}01s60.+364 ����1qn�

23441s60.+364 ���1qn�

x�/.rr ����1qn�

�6o{1�+.6r1�6r.n1,o1p}+�6/.1�.,s.0+q1�4,o.

m}016+.6 �������1�0�

234416+.6 �������1�0�

�.+,1�,4}s.16+.6 ���1�0�

�,064 �������1�0�

5.�0y1r}ss6+q

�6�3s}s1n.�0y1,�1/}01s60.+364 �����1�0

�6�3s}s1n.�0y1,�1�3441s60.+364 �����1�0

7\g:;?�Hig?S8g:hW8t�?Wk?]:̂Wf:]?8k?98g:hW8t?�w:h:?�J<�?Wk?t\�:h?gw8f?�D<?NKTZY?Y�T?��Wtt?S8g:hW8t�?Wk?]:̂Wf:]?8k?gw:
U\ti9:?\̂?98g:hW8t?�w:h:?�J<�?Wk?wW�w:h?gw8f?�D<?NKTZY?Y�T

lkolacek
Sticky Note
Completed set by lkolacek



�����������	���
� ���������������

����	����	���������������
����� �!��"�#��"$�"�#�����%&&���'�(#)�����!��!���!(��#� ���

*+,-./01-/23+4-/4+567-8/29-/:25:652,-;/8+5-5</=9+7/,1-/>-+7-,9?-8/+=/,1-/8-5-:,-;/869=2:-8@/*+/72,-9?25
A9+A-9,?-8/29-/2AA5?-;/,+/,1-/23+4-/B673-98@

C2,-./DEFGEFHFI/JH.GF.JK/LM

N9+O-:,./P.QR/CSTUV
NSWXVY0ZQHFI[HH\/S0TL/]WWN

SWLC
SVYW*Z0Ŝ Y0TW*QMWCV]QHFI[

HH\/S0TL/]WWN/SWLC
SVYW*Z0Ŝ Y0TW*@4:-

09?735-/_68?B-88/Y-B,-9



�����������	���
� ���������������

����	����	���������������
����� �!��"�#��"$�"�#�����%&&���'�(#)����������!�(��#� ���

*+,-./01234.15606

789:; <;=>?@ABCD?EAFGDHIJ=KLMNKKO?AIBP?QFFE
AFP@?ADHF7JIARHIBF7=SF@DQ=KLMNKKO
AIBP?QFFE?AFP@?ADHF7JIARHIBF7TUV:

JWX:; YZ?S[
S\]ŴW:]; _̀LàLKLM?bK;bc;KL?PS?dRIH;NZe
IW9:?X\f:;E8VŴWV?Jg8f]8h]?IW9:
A:̂:h:fV:
fi9j:h;
@:kVhWlgW\f;
H\99:fg?b;
H\99:fg?L;
H\99:fg?M;

m,,+n3o60.1pqr0.s

789:; JHJOKK?Q\V8tWX8gW\f
>\f:; JHJOKK?A:V\h]

@8gi9;
u<J_a?DviWU8t:fg
@8gi9

<t\j8t?h:̂:h:fV:
]8gi9;

u<J?bO_a

<t\j8t?h:̂:h:fV:
:l\Vw;
<:\W];
C:hgWV8t?]8gi9;
H8tWjh8g:]?kWg:;

x6+0yz,+{1|,4}s.1~.�,+0

�o/46rr3�3.n1r}+�6/.1/,s�6+.n10,1�o/46rr3�3.n1r}+�6/.

p}+�6/.r

x�1�����1� Ht8kkŴWV8gW\f;?RfVt8kkŴW:]

p� Ht8kkŴWV8gW\f;?RfVt8kkŴW:]

�6o{1|,4}s.r1�6r.n1,o1p}+�6/.1�.,s.0+q1�4,o.

m}01s60.+364 ����1qn�

23441s60.+364 ���1qn�

x�/.rr ����1qn�

�6o{1�+.6r1�6r.n1,o1p}+�6/.1�.,s.0+q1�4,o.

m}016+.6 �������1�0�

234416+.6 �������1�0�

�.+,1�,4}s.16+.6 ���1�0�

�,064 ��������1�0�

5.�0y1r}ss6+q

�6�3s}s1n.�0y1,�1/}01s60.+364 �����1�0

�6�3s}s1n.�0y1,�1�3441s60.+364 �����1�0

7\g:;?�Hig?S8g:hW8t�?Wk?]:̂Wf:]?8k?98g:hW8t?�w:h:?�J<�?Wk?t\�:h?gw8f?�D<?NKTZY?c�T?��Wtt?S8g:hW8t�?Wk?]:̂Wf:]?8k?gw:
U\ti9:?\̂?98g:hW8t?�w:h:?�J<�?Wk?wW�w:h?gw8f?�D<?NKTZY?c�T



�����������	���
� ���������������

����	����	���������������
����� �!��"�#��"$�"�#�����%&&���'�(#)����������!�(��#� ���

*+,-./01-/23+4-/4+567-8/29-/:25:652,-;/8+5-5</=9+7/,1-/>-+7-,9?-8/+=/,1-/8-5-:,-;/869=2:-8@/*+/72,-9?25
A9+A-9,?-8/29-/2AA5?-;/,+/,1-/23+4-/B673-98@

C2,-./DEFGEFHFI/JH.GF.KL/MN

O9+P-:,./Q.RS/CTUVW
OTXYWZ0[RHFI\HHL/T0UM/]XXO

TXMC
TWZX*[0T̂ Z0UX*RNXCW]RHFI\

HHL/T0UM/]XXO/TXMC
TWZX*[0T̂ Z0UX*@4:-

09?735-/_68?B-88/Z-B,-9



�����������	���
� ���������������

����	����	���������������
����� �!��"�#��"$�"�#�����%&&���'�(#)������*����+(��#� ���

,-./0123456037828

9:;<= >=?@ABCDEFAGCHIFJKL?MNOPMMQACKDRASHHG
CHRBACFJH9LKCTJKDH9?UHBFS?MNOPMMQ
CKDRASHHGACHRBACFJH9LKCTJKDH9VWX<

LYZ<= [\AU]
U _̂ỲY<_= abNcbNMNOAdM=de=MNARUAfTKJ=P\g
KY;<AẐh<=G:XỲYXALi:h_:j_AKY;<
C<̀<j<hX<
hk;l<j=
B<mXjYniŶh=
Ĵ;;<hiAd=
Ĵ;;<hiAN=
Ĵ;;<hiAO=

o..-p5q8203rst20u

9:;<= LJLQMMAŜX:vYZ:iŶh
@̂h<= LJLQMMAC<X̂j_

B:ik;=
w>LacAFxkYW:v<hi
B:ik;

>v̂l:vAj<̀<j<hX<
_:ik;=

w>LAdQac

>v̂l:vAj<̀<j<hX<
<n̂Xy=
><̂Y_=
E<jiYX:vA_:ik;=
J:vYlj:i<_AmYi<=

z8-2{|.-}3~.6�u03�0�.-2

�q168tt5�50p3t�-�81031.u�8-0p32.3�q168tt5�50p3t�-�810

r�-�810t

z�3�����3� Jv:mmỲYX:iŶh=AThXv:mmỲY<_

r� Jv:mmỲYX:iŶh=AThXv:mmỲY<_

�8q}3~.6�u0t3�8t0p3.q3r�-�8103�0.u02-s3�6.q0

o�23u820-586 ����3sp�

45663u820-586 ���3sp�

z�10tt ����3sp�

�8q}3�-08t3�8t0p3.q3r�-�8103�0.u02-s3�6.q0

o�238-08 �������3�2�

456638-08 �����3�2�

�0-.3�.6�u038-08 ���3�2�

�.286 �������3�2�

70�2{3t�uu8-s

�8�5u�u3p0�2{3.�31�23u820-586 �����3�2

�8�5u�u3p0�2{3.�3�5663u820-586 �����3�2

9̂i<=A�JkiAU:i<jY:v�AYmA_<̀Yh<_A:mA;:i<jY:vA�y<j<A�L>�AYmAv̂�<jAiy:hA�F>APMV\[A\�VA��YvvAU:i<jY:v�AYmA_<̀Yh<_A:mAiy<
Ŵvk;<ẦA;:i<jY:vA�y<j<A�L>�AYmAyY�y<jAiy:hA�F>APMV\[A\�V



�����������	���
� ���������������

����	����	���������������
����� �!��"�#��"$�"�#�����%&&���'�(#)������*����+(��#� ���

,-./0123/145-6/16-789/:14;/1<47<874./=1:-7/7>1?;-91.3/1@/-9/.;A/:1-?1.3/1:/7/<./=1:8;?4</:B1,-194./;A47
C;-C/;.A/:14;/14CC7A/=1.-1.3/145-6/1D895/;:B

E4./01FGHIGHJHK1LJ0II0HM1NO

P;-Q/<.01R0ST1EUVWX
PUYZX[2\SJHK]JĴ1U2VN1_YYP

UYNE
UX[Y,\2Ù [2VY,SOYEX_SJHK]

JĴ1U2VN1_YYP1UYNE
UX[Y,\2Ù [2VY,B6</

2;A957/1a8:AD/::1[/D./;



�����������	�
��� ���������������

����	����	�������������������� ����!�"���#�$��#%�#�$������&''���(�)$*������
�+�,��)��$� ���

-./01234567148939

:;<=> ?>@ABCDEFGBHDIJGKLM@NOPQNNRBDLESBTIIH
DISCBDGKI:MLDUKLEI:@VICGT@NOPQNNR
DLESBTIIHBDISCBDGKI:MLDUKLEI:WXY=

MZ[=> \]BV^
V_̀ZaZ=̀> bcOdcONOPBeN>ef>NOBSVBgULK>Q]h
LZ<=B[_i=>H;YZaZYBMj;ì;k̀BLZ<=
D=a=k=iY=
il<m=k>
C=nYkZojZ_i>
K_<<=ijBe>
K_<<=ijBO>
K_<<=ijBP>

p//.q6r9314stu31v

:;<=> MKMRNNBT_Y;wZ[;jZ_i
A_i=> MKMRNNBD=Y_k̀

C;jl<>
x?MbdBGylZX;w=ij
C;jl<

?w_m;wBk=a=k=iY=
;̀jl<>

x?MBeRbd

?w_m;wBk=a=k=iY=
=o_Yz>
?=_Z̀>
F=kjZY;wB̀;jl<>
K;wZmk;j=̀BnZj=>

{9.3|}/.~4�/7�v14�1�/.3

�r279uu6�61q4u�.�92142/v�9.1q43/4�r279uu6�61q4u�.�921

s�.�921u

{�4�����4� Kw;nnZaZY;jZ_i>BUiYw;nnZaZ=̀

s� Kw;nnZaZY;jZ_i>BUiYw;nnZaZ=̀

�9r~4�/7�v1u4�9u1q4/r4s�.�9214�1/v13.t4�7/r1

p�34v931.697 ����4tq�

56774v931.697 ����4tq�

{�21uu ����4tq�

�9r~4�.19u4�9u1q4/r4s�.�9214�1/v13.t4�7/r1

p�349.19 ��������4�3�

567749.19 �������4�3�

�1./4�/7�v149.19 ���4�3�

�/397 ��������4�3�

81�3|4u�vv9.t

�9�6v�v4q1�3|4/�42�34v931.697 �����4�3

�9�6v�v4q1�3|4/�4�6774v931.697 �����4�3

:_j=>B�KljBV;j=kZ;w�BZnB̀=aZi=̀B;nB<;j=kZ;wB�z=k=B�M?�BZnBw_�=kBjz;iB�G?BQNW]\Bb�WB� ZwwBV;j=kZ;w�BZnB̀=aZi=̀B;nBjz=
X_wl<=B_aB<;j=kZ;wB�z=k=B�M?�BZnBzZ¡z=kBjz;iB�G?BQNW]\Bb�W



�����������	�
��� ���������������

����	����	�������������������� ����!�"���#�$��#%�#�$������&''���(�)$*������
�+�,��)��$� ���

-./012340256.7027.89:0;25<02=58=985/0>2;.808?2@<.:2/402A0.:0/<B0;2.@2/402;080=/0>2;9<@5=0;C2-.2:5/0<B58
D<.D0</B0;25<025DD8B0>2/.2/40256.702E9:60<;C

F5/012GHIJHIKIL2MK1JN1MG2OP

Q<.R0=/12S1TU2FVWXY
QVZ[Y\3]TKIL̂KK_2V3WO2̀ZZQ

VZOF
VY\Z-]3Va\3WZ-TPZFỲTKIL̂

KK_2V3WO2̀ZZQ2VZOF
VY\Z-]3Va\3WZ-C7=0

3<B:6802b9;BE0;;2\0E/0<





 CHANGE ORDER REQUEST 
CCO No.          015 

 
 

 

Submitted By:    Approved By:  
  

2/5/2024 
    

Braden Riley Date   Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority  Date 
     

 

 

Project No.:   16571 – RTIA Terminal Loop Road Project Date:  2/5/2024 
 

 
To: 

 
Jon Lau 

 
From: 

 
Braden Riley 

 Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority  Q&D Construction LLC 
 2001 E Plumb Lane  PO Box 10865 
 Reno, NV 89502  Reno, NV  89510 
 

Phone: 
 
775-328-6462 

 
Phone: 

 
775-786-2677 

Fax: 
 

Fax: 775-786-5136 
Email: jlau@renoairport.com Email: briley@qdconstruction.com 

cc: Joe Mamola (CME), Marc Leone (Q&D) 
 

Below is the detail for our proposal to complete the following changes in contract work: 
- Change Order Request: CCO#015 – Upsizing Pull Boxes 

- Proposed Scope of Work:  Change order is for labor, equipment, and materials to upsize 
pull boxes to accommodate the number of conduit to come in and out of the boxes.  
 
 

 

 

CCO Item Sub-Totals Quantity Units Unit Price Amount 

Upsize Pull Boxes 1 LSU $9,350.00 $9,350.00 

 

 

CCO Item Totals Change (in Days) Amount 

CCO#015 – Upsize Pull Boxes 0 $9,350.00 
 



PCO-001  
Upsized Pull Boxes 
2314 - Terminal Loop

Braden Riley RTIA Terminal Loop Rd. 

Q& D Construction Upsized Pull Boxes

1051 S 21st Street, Reno, NV 89431 January 23, 2024

775-302-6552 Ryan Greenhalgh

Multiple boxes located in the departures lane had to be upsized to accommodate the number 
of conduit required to come in and out of these boxes.

9,350.00



 
 

Administrative Report 
Date: March 12, 2024 

Subject: Financial Reporting Package – January 2024 
  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  

Attached is the Financial Reporting Package for the seven months ending January 31, 2024, of fiscal year 
(FY) 2023-24. The package includes a high-level summary of total revenue and expenses, followed by a 
more detailed discussion of key metrics.  
 
In the opening days of the year, American equities saw modest gains. The Dow Jones Industrial Average 
climbed by 1.3%, the S&P 500 advanced by 1.7%, and the NASDAQ saw a 1.0% increase. Notably, the 
large-cap stocks outpaced the Small-caps in January. The Russell 1000 index grew by 1.4%, contrasting 
with a 3.9% decline in the Russell 2000. Growth outperformed value within both indices.1 
 
In January, the seasonally adjusted Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers saw a 0.3% increase, 
while over the past 12 months (not seasonally adjusted), it increased 3.1%. Excluding food and energy, 
the index for all items experienced a 0.4% increase in January.2 
 
In its January 2024 meeting, the Federal Reserve declared its decision to uphold the overnight federal 
funds rate within the existing range of 5.25% to 5.5%. Concurrently, the unemployment rate held steady 
at 3.7% for the third consecutive month. Since February 2022, the rate has fluctuated within the range of 
3.4% to 3.8%. The count of unemployed individuals remained relatively unchanged at 6.1 million in 
January 2024. 
 
Passenger traffic at RNO was forecasted to continue its upward trend in FY 2023-24, expected to reach 
2.497 million enplaned passengers. This represents a 12% increase from the prior fiscal year and marks 
the highest passenger forecast since FY 2006-07. While demand for travel in the Reno-Tahoe region 
remains strong, passenger airlines are adapting their schedules to align with pilot and aircraft availability, 
leading to a reduction in flight frequency in favor of larger aircraft and a potential for high load factors. 
The updated enplaned passenger traffic forecast for FY 2023-24 is 2.420 million. 
 
In January 2024, RNO was served by 11 passenger airlines (this number does not include Sun Country 
Airlines) offering non-stop scheduled service to 22 destinations. Enplanements were 172,968, a decrease 
of 15.9% compared to the budget forecast and an increase of 0.9% from January 2023. Total enplanements 
for the seven months ending January 31, 2024, reached 1.369 million, a decrease of 5.6% compared to the 
budget forecast and a 4.6% increase year-over-year. Total landed weight was 7.3% lower than the budget 
forecast for both passenger and cargo airlines.  
 
To enhance tracking of actual results as compared to the budget, adjustments for seasonal variation of 
revenues, expenses and airline activity are incorporated into the budget. Revenues are adjusted to reflect 

 
1 Monthly Market Wrap: January 2024 ‐ YCharts 

 
2 Bureau of Labor Statistics (USDL‐23‐2563) 



2 

 
changes in airline activity during peak months, resulting in some higher airline revenues, public parking, 
and concession revenues. Other seasonal adjustments account for specific utility costs and special events. 
The balance of budgeted operating expenses assumes a uniform distribution, with one-twelfth of the 
operating expense budget allocated to each month.  
 

 
 
Based on actual results through January 31, 2024, net income before depreciation was approximately 
$29.005 million, reflecting a substantial increase of $10.615 million or 57.7% from the budget forecast. 
This noteworthy surge is primarily attributed to operating expenses being $2.884 million or 7.5% below 
budget, coupled with non-operating income surpassing expectations by $8.137 million or 68.8% above 
budget. The non-operating increase includes federal stimulus funds (CARES, ARPA) in the current fiscal 
year for projects budgeted and started in the prior year.  
 

OPERATING REVENUES  
 
RTAA's operating revenues for FY 2024 through January 31, 2024, totaled $44.610 million, 
approximately $406,400 or 0.9% below the budget due to lower than anticipated airline traffic and softer 
than expected public parking and auto rental activity. Revenues exceeded the prior fiscal year's actual 
results by $6.549 million or 17.2%. This upturn can be attributed to higher terminal rents, landing fees, 
concession revenues, aircraft fees, parking and ground transportation fees, and other rents. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Y E A R    T O    D A T E   as  of January 31, 2024  (In Thousands)
58.3% Of Fiscal Year

CURRENT PRIOR Y-T-D
YEAR YEAR $ % BUDGET $ %

Operating Revenue
  Airline 14,929$      11,474$      3,455$       30.1% 15,236$      (307)$         -2.0%
  Non-Airline 29,681 26,587 3,094 11.6% 29,781 (100) -0.3%
Total Operating Revenue 44,610       38,061       6,549         17.2% 45,016       (406)           -0.9%

Operating Expenses (35,573) (31,489) (4,084) 13.0% (38,457) 2,884 -7.5%

Net Operating Income 9,037 6,572 2,465 37.5% 6,560 2,478 37.8%

Non-Operating Income (Expense)* 19,968 14,689 5,279 35.9% 11,830 8,137 68.8%

Net Income Before Depreciation 29,005       21,261       7,744         36.4% 18,390       10,615       57.7%
* Includes Federal Stimulus funds

VARIANCE
Actual Results

VARIANCE



3 

 
The chart below reflects actual operating revenues for the fiscal year as compared to the budget amount. 
 
 

 
 

AIRLINE REVENUES  
 
Airline revenues are collected in accordance with prescribed rates and charges as specified by formulas in 
RTAA’s new Airline-Airport Use and Lease Agreement (AAULA) with the signatory airlines, effective 
from July 1, 2023, to June 30, 2033. The new AAULA maintains a hybrid structure, with a complete 
recoupment of net Airfield cost center operating, maintenance, debt service, amortization, and capital 
improvement costs through landing fees from the airlines, and the airlines only pay for the space they use 
in the terminal building.  
 
The AAULA includes a revenue-sharing methodology for the distribution of available net revenues to 
signatory passenger airlines on a per-enplaned passenger basis. This aims to create an incentive for air 
service by tying an allocated amount of available net revenues to the number of enplaned passengers of 
each signatory airline. Signatory airlines have the flexibility to use the revenue share credit to cover 
monthly rates and charges. The total revenue share credit of $4.520 million ($3.70 per enplaned passenger), 
was $194,400 or 4.1% below the FY 2023-24 budget. This was attributable to the lower enplaned 
passenger traffic reported by signatory airlines.  
 
Landing Fees 
 
The formula for calculating landing fees consists of 100% cost recovery of Airfield-related operating costs, 
capital improvement costs, debt service, amortization, and other charges. These costs are mitigated by 
Airfield-derived revenues and non-signatory landing fees. Landing fees were budgeted and collected at 
$3.99 per 1,000 lbs. of landed weight for signatory airlines and $4.59 for non-signatory airlines. Non-
signatory airlines pay 15% above the budgeted signatory airline rate. Based on actual results for the seven-
month period ending January 31, 2024, the calculated signatory landing fee per 1,000 lbs. was $4.08. The 



4 

 
slight increase in signatory landing fee is due to the lower-than-expected landed weight reported by airlines 
in the first seven months of the fiscal year. Lower landed weight was reported by Alaska, Delta, Southwest, 
FedEx, UPS, Allegiant, JetBlue, and Spirit partially offset by higher landed weight reported by American, 
United, and Sun Country. While below budget, the landed weight reported through January 31, 2024, was 
2.8% above the same period in FY 2022-23. Total landing fee revenues were $7.617 million, 
approximately $540,200 or 6.6% below the adopted budget.  

 
Airline Terminal Rents 
 
Airline terminal rents are determined by the recovery of all Terminal costs, including operating and 
maintenance, capital improvement, debt service, and amortization. This cost is divided by the square 
footage of the airline rentable space in the terminal building. The Terminal requirement is partially offset 
by in-terminal concession revenues, a 50% share of gaming revenues, and reimbursed services. The 
budgeted average rental rate is $142.44 per square foot per annum (PSFPA). Based on the actual results 
for the seven months ending January 31, 2024, the calculated average terminal rental rate was $129.48, a 
decrease of 9.1% compared to the budgeted rate of $142.44. The decrease is primarily due to the lower 
operating costs of the Terminal cost center in the first seven months of the year. Actual airline terminal 
rental revenues were $11.832 million through January 2024, surpassing the budget by approximately 
$39,100 or 0.3%.  
 
NON-AIRLINE REVENUES  
 
Non-airline operating revenues play a crucial role in supporting RTAA’s operating costs outside of airline-
affiliated operations. While airline revenues are calculated and collected as cost recovery for airline-related 
operations, non-airline operating revenues are essential to fund internal operations, equipment 
acquisitions, and capital improvement projects that are not directly associated with airline operations. Non-
airline operating revenues are primarily comprised of terminal and rental car concession revenues, public 
parking, building/land rents, and reimbursement of RTAA provided services. Based on actual results for 
the seven-month period ending January 31, 2024, non-airline operating revenues, adjusted by the ARPA 
allocation of approximately $84,200, totaled $29.681 million, $99,700 or 0.3% under the budget forecast.  

 
Concession revenues outperformed the budget by $193,300 or 5.2% primarily due to higher than 
anticipated business activity by ground handlers operating at RNO. In addition, gaming, retail, and 
advertising concessions also reported positive results in the first seven months of the year. Auto rental 
concession revenues were $266,300 or 4.2% below budget. All rental car companies, except for Alamo, 
operated above the Minimum Annual Guarantee (MAG) revenue levels for the first seven months of the 
year. Gross revenues per enplanement have decreased by 4.9% from the prior fiscal year. Parking revenues 
fell short of the budget forecast by $411,000, or a decrease of 3.7%, and exceeded the same period in the 
previous fiscal year by $422,200 or 4.1%.  The underperformance in parking revenues is directly related 
to increased activity reported by the transportation network companies (TNCs) as more passengers use the 
transportations services provided by TNCs. As a result, ground transportation revenues outperformed the 
budget by $28,900 or 5.1%. Parking revenue per enplaned passenger decreased by 0.6% from $7.67 to 
$7.62 when compared to the same period in the prior FY. 
 
Reno-Tahoe Land Rental revenues are $232,500 below budget through January 2024 due to the delayed 
commencement of rent for the Toles commercial development. Reno-Stead Airport (RTS) rents 
outperformed the budget by $242,200 due to the option payments received from Dermody Properties. 

 

 

 



5 

 
NON-OPERATING REVENUES 

Non-operating revenues reached $19.967 million, exceeding the budget by approximately $8.137 million 
or 68.8% based on actual results for the period ending January 31, 2024. This revenue category is primarily 
comprised of Customer Facility Charges (CFCs) associated with the rental car activity, Passenger Facility 
Charges (PFCs), federal stimulus funds (CARES, ARPA), interest income, and aviation fuel tax. Federal 
stimulus funds are recorded as non-operating revenues when funds are received from the FAA. The single 
largest increase in this category was $6.061 million of CARES, ARPA federal stimulus funds received to 
reimburse RTAA for prior period disbursements. These prior period reimbursements were not factored 
into the FY 2023-24 budget forecast.   
 
CFC collections, interest income, and fuel tax revenues collectively surpassed the budget forecast by 
approximately $1.712 million. CFCs were increased from $6.50 to $9.00 per transaction day effective 
September 1, 2023. The rate increase was not factored into the adopted budget forecast. FY 2023-24 CFC 
revenues through January 31, 2024, were $6.153 million, $595,300 or 10.7% above budget primarily due 
to the rate increase in September 2023. 
  
PFC revenues are collected by airlines from ticket sales at $4.50 per enplaned passenger, with RTAA 
receiving a net of $4.39 after a $0.11 administration fee. PFC collections are reflected as revenue when 
the cash is received, resulting in some months appearing to be over-collected and others under-collected 
due to timing. In the first seven months of the year, PFC revenues were $5.405 million, exceeding the 
same period in the prior year by $471,500 or 9.6%, and $75,300 or 1.4% below budget.  This difference 
is primarily attributed to the timing of cash received. PFCs are collected by airlines at the time of ticket 
sales, resulting in revenues not precisely aligning with actual passenger traffic in any period. 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

Based on actual results for the seven-month period ending January 31, 2024, operating expenses of 
$35.573 million, were $2.884 million or 7.5% below budget, and $4.084 million or 13.0% above the same 
period in the prior fiscal year. Operating expenses are grouped into five categories: Personnel Services, 
Utilities and Communications, Purchased Services, Materials and Supplies and Administrative expenses. 
All categories were below budget, except for Utilities and Communications. All five categories were below 
budget. 
 
Personnel Services reported previously from July through December 2023, have been restated in RTAA’s 
general ledger to correct the cost allocation of salaries and benefits for those prior periods. These 
adjustments have no impact on employee payments of salaries and wages. In addition, staff calculated the 
accrued vacation liability effective January 31, 2024 resulting in an additional expense of $148,400 
through December. The six month personnel expense total increased by $101,100 as a result of these 
adjustments. The table below indicates the prior reported and restated amounts for Personnel Services 
expenses. 
 

Month Personnel Expenses 
Prior Reported 

Personnel Expenses 
Restated 

Difference 

July $3,289,439 $3,371,633 $82,194 
August $3,481,908 $3,402,592 ($79,316) 
September $3,199,200 $3,803,147 $603,947 
October $3,321,177 $3,476,266 $155,089 
November $3,442,961 $3,517,150 $74,189 
December $4,283,549 $3,548,578 ($734,971) 
Total $21,018,234 $21,119,366 $101,132 

  



6 

 
 
The chart below reflects actual operating expenses for the fiscal year as compared to the budget amount. 
 

 
 

DEBT SERVICE 
 
On July 14, 2022, the Board approved a $50 million non-revolving credit agreement with Wells Fargo 
Bank to provide short-term financing for RTAA’s capital program. The funds may be drawn in any amount 
not to exceed $50 million. As of January 2024, a total of $31.219 million has been drawn, leaving a balance 
of $18.781 million available for future RTAA capital financing needs. Repayment of a portion of the 
drawn funds, along with interest and fees, is from federal stimulus funds. $15.987 million was the 
outstanding debt balance as of January 2024 and is associated with the Ticketing Hall Expansion project. 
 

KEY BENCHMARKS 

The following are key benchmarks and ratios used to measure financial activities and monitor the financial 
health and condition of RTAA: 

 

Y E A R    T O    D A T E    January 31, 2024 
58.3% Of Fiscal Year

CURRENT PRIOR Y-T-D
Key Statistics / Benchmarks YEAR YEAR VARIANCE % BUDGET VARIANCE %

  Enplaned Passengers 1,368,622 1,308,313 60,309 4.6% 1,449,446 (80,824) -5.6%
  Airline Cost Per Enplaned Passenger 10.15$          6.85$            3.30$            48.2% 9.71$           0.44 4.6%
  Non-Airline Revenues per EPAX (a) 20.35$          18.88$          1.47$            7.8% 19.29$          1.06 5.5%
  Operating Ratio 79.7% 82.7% -3.0% -3.6% 85.4% -5.7% -6.7%
  Days Cash On Hand 471 426 45.1 10.6% 483              (11.80)               -2.4%
  Federal Stimulus 6,738,138$    4,474,165$    2,263,972$    50.6% 676,722$      6,061,416 895.7%

(a)  Excludes cost reimbursement for the Baggage Handing System (BHS) paid by the airlines.



7 

 
Enplaned Passengers 
 
Enplaned passengers for the first seven months of FY 2023-24 were 1,368,622, a 4.6% increase compared 
to the corresponding period in the prior fiscal year and 5.6% less than the budget forecast.  January 
passenger traffic is the highest reported since 2008. Enplaned passengers are critical to non-airline 
revenues, such as public parking, rental car concessions, food and beverage concessions, gaming, etc.  
 
Airline Cost per Enplaned Passenger (CPE) 
 
This ratio represents airline payments for use of airport facilities including landing fees, terminal rents, 
and baggage handling systems, in accordance with the adopted rates and charges methodology as outlined 
in the new airline lease agreement. RTAA targets to maintain a reasonable cost structure for airlines 
operating at RNO to attract and maintain air service to our community. With operating expenses running 
7.5% below budget, lower passenger traffic, and the $3.70 revenue share credit per enplaned passenger, 
the signatory airline CPE is estimated to be $10.15 as compared to the FY 2023-24 budget of $9.71.  
 
Non-Airline Revenue per Enplaned Passenger 
 
This ratio represents operating revenues derived from sources other than the airlines, divided by enplaned 
passengers for the fiscal year. It measures operating revenue capacity from various sources including 
terminal rents, rental car concession fees, public parking, and land and building rents from non-airline 
facilities at both airports. Based on actual results for the first seven months of FY 2023-24, the non-airline 
revenue per enplaned passenger was $20.35, 5.5% higher than the budgeted amount of $19.29. This 
increase is primarily due to higher revenues from concessions, building and land rents, and interest income.  
 
Operating Ratio 
 
The Operating Ratio is calculated by dividing operating and maintenance expenses by total operating 
revenues. This ratio indicates whether the level of operating expenses as a proportion of operating revenues 
are consistent and tracking with the approved expenditures and revenues adopted in the budget. Generally, 
a lower ratio of expenses to revenues is positive since it reflects an improvement in the net operating 
revenues available to pay debt service and generate additional cash flow. Based on the first seven months 
of FY 2023-24, the operating ratio was 79.7% as compared to the higher ratio in the prior year of 82.7%, 
and the adopted budget of 85.4%. These results compared to the budget reflect the lower operating 
expenses through January 2024. 
 
Days Cash on Hand (DCOH) 
 
DCOH is an important measure of liquidity. It is calculated by dividing unrestricted cash and investments 
by the daily operating and maintenance expenditure budget (annual operating and maintenance budget 
divided by 365 days). As of January 31, 2024, RTAA’s DCOH was 471 days, approximately 12 days 
lower than the FY 2023-24 budget forecast. RTAA’s policy is a desired target of 365 days. The 2021 
median average, as compiled by Moody’s Investor Services, is 794 for medium hub airports.  
 
 



OPERATING STATEMENT
RENO-TAHOE AIRPORT AUTHORITY

For the Seven Months Ending January 31, 2024
    

C U R R E N T   M O N T H For the Seven Months Ending January 31, 2024
58.33% OF FISCAL YEAR

CURRENT PRIOR CURRENT PRIOR Y-T-D
 YEAR YEAR VARIANCE % YEAR YEAR VARIANCE % BUDGET VARIANCE %
REVENUES
  Landing Fees 1,017,764$          884,253$       133,511$       15.1% 7,617,196$       6,292,264$      1,324,933$      21.1% 8,157,382$     (540,186)$          -6.6%

  Terminal Rent, Airline 1,651,627 720,320 931,307         129.3% 11,831,624 5,181,259 6,650,364 128.4% 11,792,550 39,074 0.3%

  Airline Revenue Sharing (582,524) 0 (582,524)        n.a. (4,519,824) 0 (4,519,824) n.a. (4,714,232) 194,408 -4.1%
  Aircraft Fees 112,327 99,414 12,914           13.0% 789,371 668,929 120,441 18.0% 706,024 83,347 11.8%
  Concession Revenue 554,971 521,626 33,345           6.4% 3,900,413 2,214,325 1,686,088 76.1% 3,707,080 193,333 5.2%
  Auto Rental 727,433 536,311 191,121         35.6% 6,082,305 6,004,946 77,359 1.3% 6,348,573 (266,268) -4.2%
  Parking & Ground Transportation 1,480,022 1,454,007 26,015           1.8% 11,292,139 10,671,728 620,411 5.8% 11,674,221 (382,082) -3.3%
  Reno-Tahoe Building/ Land Rents 746,806 660,951 85,855           13.0% 4,869,044 4,476,976 392,068 8.8% 4,886,676 (17,631) -0.4%
  Reno-Stead Rents 128,791 90,320 38,471           42.6% 815,228 719,878 95,350 13.2% 573,067 242,162 42.3%
  Reimbursed Services 257,600 282,916 (25,316)          -8.9% 1,836,355 1,795,403 40,952 2.3% 1,827,423 8,933 0.5%
  Miscellaneous 4,948 3,983 966 24% 96,135 35,173 60,963 173.3% 57,633 38,502 66.8%

      
OPERATING REVENUE 6,099,765$          5,254,100$    845,665$       16.1% 44,609,987$     38,060,881$    6,549,106$      17.2% 45,016,396$   (406,409)$          -0.9%
          
EXPENSES     
  Personnel Services 3,588,598$          3,239,603$    348,996$       10.8% 24,707,945$     21,475,354$    3,232,591$      15.1% 24,808,230$   (100,285)$          -0.4%
  Utilities and Communications 314,106 446,557 (132,451) -29.7% 2,399,379 2,277,384 121,995 5.4% 2,585,077 (185,698) -7.2%
  Purchased Services 791,069 833,981 (42,912) -5.1% 4,772,618 4,143,124 629,494 15.2% 6,350,909 (1,578,291) -24.9%
  Materials and Supplies 237,015 328,346 (91,331) -27.8% 1,698,856 1,870,395 (171,539) -9.2% 1,922,736 (223,880) -11.6%
  Administrative Expense 277,578 218,294 59,284 27.2% 1,993,779 1,722,699 271,080 15.7% 2,789,680 (795,901) -28.5%
         
OPERATING EXPENSES 5,208,367$          5,066,781$    141,586$       2.8% 35,572,577$     31,488,955$    4,083,621$      13.0% 38,456,632$   (2,884,055)$       -7.5%

NET OPERATING INC. BEFORE DEPR. 891,398$             187,319$       704,079$       375.9% 9,037,410$       6,571,926$      2,465,485$      37.5% 6,559,764$     2,477,646$        37.8%
       

  Depreciation and Amortization 1,976,587 2,001,483 (24,896) -1.2% 13,850,175 14,402,454 (552,280) -3.8% 16,332,680 (2,482,505) -15.2%
         

OPERATING INCOME (1,085,189)$        (1,814,164)$  728,975$       40.2% (4,812,764)$      (7,830,529)$     3,017,764$      38.5% (9,772,916)$    4,960,151$        50.8%
        

NON-OPERTING INCOME (EXPENSE)    
  Interest Income 421,571$             162,364$       259,207$       159.6% 1,822,376$       856,621$         965,755$         112.7% 706,475$        1,115,901 158.0%
  Passenger Facility Charge 646,242 874,207 (227,964) -26.1% 5,404,925 4,933,402        471,523           9.6% 5,480,183 (75,258) -1.4%
  Customer Facility Charge 759,073 524,855 234,217         44.6% 6,152,530 4,424,212        1,728,318        39.1% 5,557,194 595,336 10.7%
  Jet Fuel Tax Revenue 23,000 24,581 (1,581)            -6.4% 175,328 186,077           (10,750)            -5.8% 174,067 1,261 0.7%
  Federal Grant Revenue 301,219 2,411,298 (2,110,078)    n.a. 6,738,138 4,474,165        2,263,972        50.6% 676,722          6,061,416 895.7%
  G/L on Sale of Capital Assets 0 0 0 n.a. 836 2,157 (1,321) -61.2% 0 836 n.a.
  Other Non-Operating Revenue (Expense) 4,629 0 4,629 n.a. 16,598 (135,000) 151,598 -112.3% (116,662) 133,260 -114.2%
  Interest Expense (66,485) (9,304) (57,181) 614.6% (343,049) (52,881) (290,168) 548.7% (647,777) 304,728 -47.0%
       
Total 2,089,248$          3,988,000$    (1,898,752)$  -47.6% 19,967,682$     14,688,754$    5,278,928$      35.9% 11,830,202$   8,137,480$        68.8%

        
Net Income Before Capital Contributions 1,004,059$          2,173,836$    (1,169,777)$  -53.8% 15,154,917$     6,858,225$      8,296,692$      121.0% 2,057,286$     13,097,632$      636.6%

8



    
ANNUAL BUDGET

ANNUAL 
BUDGET %

 $ % $ % TO DATE
REVENUES
  Landing Fees 1,017,764$    1,144,298$      (126,534)$     -11.1% 7,617,196$     8,157,382$     (540,186)$         -6.6% 14,007,453$   54%
  Terminal Rent, Airline 1,651,627 1,684,650 (33,023)         -2.0% 11,831,624$   11,792,550 39,074 0.3% 20,215,800 59%
  Airline Revenue Sharing (582,524) (671,679) 89,155           -13.3% (4,519,824)$    (4,714,232) 194,408 -4.1% (8,180,400) 55%
  Aircraft Fees 112,327 100,861 11,467           11.4% 789,371$        706,024 83,347 11.8% 1,210,326 65%
  Concession Revenue 554,971 526,862 28,109           5.3% 3,900,413$     3,707,080 193,333 5.2% 6,378,460 61%
  Auto Rental 727,433 900,795 (173,363)       -19.2% 6,082,305$     6,348,573 (266,268) -4.2% 10,936,255 56%
  Parking & Ground Transportation 1,480,022 1,656,872 (176,850)       -10.7% 11,292,139$   11,674,221 (382,082) -3.3% 20,106,733 56%
  Reno-Tahoe Building/ Land Rents 746,806 698,097 48,710           7.0% 4,869,044$     4,886,676 (17,631) -0.4% 8,377,158 58%
  Reno-Stead Rents 128,791 81,867 46,924           57.3% 815,228$        573,067 242,162 42.3% 982,400 83%
  Reimbursed Services 257,600 259,888 (2,288)           -0.9% 1,836,355$     1,827,423 8,933 0.5% 3,142,836 58%
  Miscellaneous 4,948 8,233 (3,285) -39.9% 96,135$          57,633 38,502 66.8% 98,800 97%

        
OPERATING REVENUE 6,099,765$    6,390,743$      (290,978)$     -4.6% 44,609,987$   45,016,396$   (406,409)$         -0.9% 77,275,821$   58%
            
EXPENSES      
  Personnel Services 3,588,598$    3,515,369$      73,230$         2.1% 24,707,945$   24,808,230$   (100,285)$         -0.4% 42,186,759$   59%
  Utilities and Communications 314,106 419,454 (105,348) -25.1% 2,399,379$     2,585,077 (185,698) -7.2% 4,543,050 53%
  Purchased Services 791,069 810,253 (19,184) -2.4% 4,772,618$     6,350,909 (1,578,291) -24.9% 9,917,771 48%
  Materials and Supplies 237,015 263,797 (26,782) -10.2% 1,698,856$     1,922,736 (223,880) -11.6% 3,220,834 53%
  Administrative Expense 277,578 394,733 (117,155) -29.7% 1,993,779$     2,789,680 (795,901) -28.5% 4,716,531 42%
           
OPERATING EXPENSES 5,208,367$    5,403,605$      (195,239)$     -3.6% 35,572,577$   38,456,632$   (2,884,055)$      -7.5% 64,584,945$   55%

NET OPERATING INC. BEFORE DEPR. 891,398$       987,137$         (95,739)$       -9.7% 9,037,410$     6,559,764$     2,477,646$        37.8% 12,690,876$   71%
       

  Depreciation and Amortization 1,976,587 2,333,333 (356,746) -15.3% 13,850,175 16,332,680 (2,482,505) -15.2% 28,000,000 49%
           

OPERATING INCOME (1,085,189)$   (1,346,196)$    261,007$       19.4% (4,812,764)$    (9,772,916)$    4,960,151$        50.8% (15,309,124)$  31%
          

NON-OPERTING INCOME (EXPENSE)    
  Interest Income 421,571$       100,925$         320,646$       317.7% 1,822,376$     706,475$        1,115,901$        158.0% 1,211,100 150%
  Passenger Facility Charge 646,242 782,883 (136,641) -17.5% 5,404,925$     5,480,183 (75,258)             -1.4% 9,394,600 58%
  Customer Facility Charge 759,073 788,507 (29,434)         -3.7% 6,152,530$     5,557,194 595,336             10.7% 9,573,000 64%
  Jet Fuel Tax Revenue 23,000 24,867 (1,867)           -7.5% 175,328$        174,067 1,261                0.7% 298,400 59%
  Federal Stimulus 301,219 96,675 204,545         211.6% 6,738,138$     676,722 6,061,416          895.7% 1,160,094 581%
  G/L on Sale of Capital Assets 0 0 0 n.a. 836.00$          0 836 n.a. 0 n.a.
  Other Non-Operating Revenue (Expense) 4,629 (16,667) 21,295 -127.8% 16,598 (116,662) 133,260 -114.2% (200,000) -8%
  Interest Expense (66,485) (92,543) 26,058 -28.2% (343,049)$       (647,777) 304,728 -47.0% (1,110,519) 31%
           
Total 2,089,248$    1,684,646$      404,602$       24.0% 19,967,682$   11,830,202$   8,137,480$        68.8% 20,326,675$   98%

          
Net Income Before Capital Contributions 1,004,059$    338,450$         665,609$       196.7% 15,154,917$   2,057,286$     13,097,632$      636.6% 5,017,551$     302%

BUDGET
VARIANCE

OPERATING STATEMENT
RENO-TAHOE AIRPORT AUTHORITY

For the Seven Months Ending January 31, 2024

C U R R E N T   M O N T H YEAR TO DATE

TOTAL
ACTUAL BUDGET

VARIANCE
ACTUAL

9



10

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

$30,000,000

$35,000,000

$40,000,000

$45,000,000

$50,000,000

FY 2024 Revenue FY 2023 Revenue FY 2024 Expense FY 2023 Expense

Fiscal Year

Operating Revenue and Expense
YTD through January 31, 2024

Landing fees Concession revenue

Parking and ground transportation Rentals

Reimbursements for services Other revenue

Employee wages and benefits Utilities and communications

Purchase of services Materials and supplies

Administrative expenses



Over 1/31/2024 Over % of
1/31/2024 1/31/2023 (Under) % Year to Date (Under) % 2023-24 Annual

YTD Actual YTD Actual Prior Year Variance Budget Budget Variance Annual Budget Budget

Aircraft Fees - Reno 777,160$             656,568$             120,591$        18.4% 671,782              105,378$        15.7% 1,151,625            67.5%
Aircraft Fees - Stead 12,211                 12,361                 (150)                -1.2% 34,242                (22,031)           -64.3% 58,700                 20.8%

Gaming Concession 824,903               451,638               373,265          0.82646845 811,690              13,213            1.6% 1,398,243            59.0%
Food & Beverage 1,183,740            574,275               609,465          106.1% 1,289,589           (105,850)         -8.2% 2,221,488            53.3%
Retail/Merchandise 751,384               227,201               524,183          230.7% 710,250              41,134            5.8% 1,223,500            61.4%
Advertising 506,970               473,265               33,706            7.1% 485,312              21,658            4.5% 831,964               60.9%
Other Concessions 101,517               51,496                 50,022            97.1% 84,330                17,188            20.4% 144,565               70.2%

FBO  and Ground Handlers 505,165               407,467               97,698            24.0% 305,667              199,498          65.3% 524,000               96.4%
Stead Concessions 26,733                 28,982                 (2,249)             -7.8% 20,242                6,491              32.1% 34,700                 77.0%

Auto Rental 6,082,305            6,004,946            77,359            1.3% 6,348,573           (266,268)         -4.2% 10,936,255          55.6%

Ground Transportation 597,416               399,248               198,168          49.6% 568,545              28,871            5.1% 977,700               61.1%
Auto Parking 10,694,723          10,272,480          422,243          4.1% 11,105,676         (410,953)         -3.7% 19,129,032          55.9%

Other Terminal Rents 641,902               478,351               163,551          34.2% 611,858              30,044            4.9% 1,048,900            61.2%
Reno-Tahoe Building Rents 2,010,137            1,926,047            84,091            4.4% 1,825,350           184,788          10.1% 3,129,171            64.2%
Reno-Tahoe Land Rents 2,217,004            2,072,578            144,427          7.0% 2,449,467           (232,463)         -9.5% 4,199,087            52.8%
Reno-Stead Rents 815,228               719,878               95,350            13.2% 573,067              242,162          42.3% 982,400               83.0%

Reimbursed Services 1,836,355            1,795,403            40,952            2.3% 1,827,423           8,933              0.5% 3,142,836            58.4%

Miscellaneous 96,135                 35,173                 60,963            173.3% 57,633                38,502            66.8% 98,800                 97.3%

Total Non-Airline Operating Revenue 29,680,991          26,587,358          3,093,633       11.6% 29,780,696         (99,706)           -0.3% 51,232,966          57.9%
-                   

Non Operating Revenue (a) 2,015,138            1,044,855            970,283          92.9% 734,183              1,280,955       174.5% 1,258,600            160.1%

TOTAL NON-AIRLINE REVENUE 31,696,129$        27,632,213$        4,063,916$      14.7% 30,514,880$       1,181,249$      3.9% 52,491,566$        60.4%
(99,706)           

Year to Date Enplaned Passengers 1,368,622 1,308,313 1,449,446 2,496,862

Non-Airline Revenue Per EPAX (b) 20.35$                 18.95$                 19.29$                19.26$                 

Non-Airline Revenue Per EPAX (c) 11.45$                 10.25$                 10.70$                10.68$                 

(a) Excludes PFC and CFC revenues
(b) Total Non-Airline Revenue less Reimbursed Services divided by enplaned passengers
(c) Non-Airline Revenue (Concessions, Rental Car, Other Rents) Per Enplaned Passenger (Strategic Plan Measure)

SUMMARY OF NON-AIRLINE REVENUES
Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority

11



SUMMARY OF ENPLANED PASSENGERS BY AIRLINE
Reno-Tahoe International Airport

Month Year-to-date
Percent YTD YTD Percent

Enplaned passengers by Airline Jan-24 Jan-23 change 2023-24 2022-23 change

Major/national carriers (Signatory)
Aha! 0 0 n.a. 0 5,407 -100.0%
Alaska 9,862 10,813 -8.8% 106,234 95,130 11.7%
American 27,252 26,711 2.0% 201,597 203,294 -0.8%
Delta 15,494 16,054 -3.5% 118,221 113,323 4.3%
Southwest 75,623 73,271 3.2% 582,559 562,585 3.6%
United 29,548 26,594 11.1% 213,303 198,363 7.5%

Total 157,779 153,443 2.8% 1,221,914 1,178,102 3.7%

Non-Signatory and Charter
Allegiant Air 226 711 -68.2% 6,753 9,545 -29.3%
Frontier 0 1,693 -100.0% 0 14,191 -100.0%
JetBlue 2,385 3,494 -31.7% 29,985 30,859 -2.8%
New Pacific Airlines, Inc. 492 0 n.a. 979 0 n.a.
Spirit Airlines 7,322 7,223 1.4% 67,237 45,259 48.6%
Sun Country Airlines 0 0 n.a. 6,659 0 n.a.
Volaris 3,395 3,237 4.9% 23,773 19,060 24.7%
Other Charters   1,369 1,573 -13.0% 11,322 11,297 0.2%

Total
15,189 17,931 -15.3% 146,708 130,211 12.7%

Total enplaned passengers 172,968 171,374 0.9% 1,368,622 1,308,313 4.6%

Alaska, 7.8%

American, 14.7%Delta, 8.6%

Southwest, 42.6%

United, 15.6%
Allegiant Air, 0.5%

Frontier, 0.0%

JetBlue, 2.2%

New Pacific Airlines, 0.1%

Spirit Airline, Inc. , 4.9%

Sun Country, 0.5%

Volaris, 1.7%

Enplaned Passenger Market Share
Year to Date January 2024

  12



13

530 522 

461 483 471 

 -

 100.00

 200.00

 300.00

 400.00

 500.00

 600.00

$0

$20,000,000

$40,000,000

$60,000,000

$80,000,000

$100,000,000

$120,000,000

$140,000,000

RTAA Liquidity Position

Unrestricted Cash Restricted Cash Days Cash on Hand


	03-2024 Finance Agenda
	02-2024 Finance MINUTES
	#07 Dermody Phase II-Bd Memo
	#07 Dermody Phase II-Board Memo
	#07 Dermody Phase II-Exhibit A
	#07 Dermody Phase II-Exhibit B
	#07 Dermody Phase II-Exhibit C

	#08 Insurance Broker Ext-Board Memo
	AR-Contracts-Revenues
	AR-Contracts-Expenditures
	Admin Report - Mar'24 Expenditures
	ALL COs for Mar'24 Admin Report

	AR-OperatingStatement_Jan2024
	Financial Reporting Package _January_2024_FINAL
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13

	AR-Contracts-Expenditures.pdf
	Admin Report - Mar'24 Expenditures
	ALL COs for Mar'24 Admin Report




